STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS 

The Circuit Court entered a Final Summary Judgment against the Petitioner, CITY 

OF SARASOTA, finding that the CITY was not entitled to an exemption from ad 

valorem tax for a stadium owned by the CITY and leased to the Chicago White Sox and 

their farm team affiliate under 6 196.199, Fla. Stat. (App 1-2) ' The CITY 

challenged the Final Summary Judgment before the Second District Court of Appeal and 

the appellate court entered a per curiam opinion affirming the Final Summary Judgment 

relying upon Sebring Airport Authority v. McIntvre, 623 So.2d 541 (Fla. 2nd DCA 

1993). (App 3) This opinion was rendered final on January 10, 1994, when the 

Appellate Court entered an order denying the CITY'S Motion for a Rehearing and for a 

stay. (App 4) The Sebring Airport Authority and Sebring International Raceway, Inc. 

filed a Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction of this Court stating that the decision 

in SebrinP Airport Authoritv, 623 So. 2nd 541, expressly and directly conflicts with a 

decision of another District Court of Appeal on the same question of law. (App 5-6) The 

Florida Supreme Court, by an Order dated January 21, 1994, accepted jurisdiction in 

Sebring Airport Authority, 623 So.2d 541. (App 7) The CITY filed a timely Notice to 

Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction. 

The Petitioner, City of Sarasota, will be referred to as "CITY". The Respondent, 
J.W. Mikos, Property Appraiser for Sarasota County, will be referred to as "MIKOS". 

References to the Appendix shall be made by use of the letters "App" followed by 0 the appropriate page. 
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SUMMARY OF ARGUM ENT 

The per curiam opinion of the Second District cites as controlling authority Sebrinq 

Airport Authority v. McIntyre, 623 So.2d 541 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1993), a decision that is 

pending review in the Florida Supreme Court, based upon express and direct conflict 

with a decision of the First District on the same question of law.3 Therefore, the per 

curiam opinion continues to constitute prima facie express conflict and allows the 

Supreme Court to exercise its jurisdiction. 

The instant case involves the imposition of an ad valorem tax on a stadium owned 

by the CITY and leased to the Chicago White Sox, a for-profit corporation, for their 

spring training games. (App 1-2) Under the present circumstances, stadiums located 

within the jurisdiction of the First District will be exempt from ad valorem tax when 

leased to for-profit lessees conducting spring training games, but will not be so exempt 

elsewhere in the State. Therefore, the CITY respectfully requests this Court to exercise 

its discretionary jurisdiction under Art. V, Q 3@)(3), Fla. Const., and review this case 

to insure that the district courts provide consistent ad valorem tax treatment of such 

properties. 

0 

The First District case is we v. Fernandina Harbor Joint Venture, 608 So. 2d 
520 (Fla. 1st DCA 1992); rev. den. 620 So. 2d 761 (Fla. 1993) as referenced in the 
Petitioners’ Brief on Jurisdiction in Sebring Airport Authority v. McIntyre, Supreme 
Court Case No. 82,489. (App 8-24) 
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AN EXPRESS A 

ARGUMENT 

RECT CONFLICT EXISTS BETWEEN THE 
FIRST AND SECOND DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL BECAUSE THE 

PROFIT LESSEES OF PUBLIC RECREATIONAL FACILITIES OWNED 
BY GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES, WHILE THE LATER PROHIBITS 
SUCH AN EXEMPTION. 

FORMER PERMITS AN AD VALOREM TAX EXEMPTION TO FOR- 

This Court may exercise its discretionary jurisdiction where an appellate court 

expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another appellate court pursuant to Art. 

V, Q 3(b)(3), Fla. Const. Although the general rule is that mere citation PCA decisions 

remain non-reviewable by the Supreme Court, where a district court PCA cites as 

controlling a case that is pending review in the Supreme Court, the Supreme Court may 

exercise jurisdiction. Jollie v. State of Florida, 405 So.2d 418, 420 (Fla. 1981). 

The reference in Jollie, 405 So.2d 418 to "controlling authority.. .that is.. .pending 

review" refers to a case in which the petition for jurisdictional review has been granted a 
and the case is pending for disposition on the merits. Harrison v. Hyster Co., 515 So.2d 

1279 (Fla. 1987). Because the Florida Supreme Court has accepted conflict jurisdiction 

of Sebring Airport Authoritv, 623 So.2d 541, the Supreme Court also has jurisdiction of 

the instant case under Art. V, 8 3@)(3), Fla. Const. Childers v. Hoffmann-LaRoche, 

540 So.2d 102 (Fla. 1989). 

The nature of the conflict is the announcement of a rule of law by the Second 

District that conflicts with a rule of law previously pronounced by the First District. 

Nielson v. Citv of Sarawta, 117 So.2d 731 (Fla. 1960). Specifically, the First District 

in Page v. Fernandina Harbor Joint Venture, 608 So.2d 520, 523 (Fla. 1st DCA 1992) 

determined that a governmentally owned public marina leased to a for-profit corporation 
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was exempt from ad valorem tax under 6 196.199(2)(a), Fla. Stat. because the operation 

of recreational facilities, including a marina, constitutes a valid public function. The 

First District in reached this conclusion by the following inquiry: 

. . . [Tlhe inquiry as to whether an exemption under the statute applies is to 
be governed by the use of the subject property and not by the institutional 
character of the entity using the property: "A right of exemption ... is to 
be determined by the use to which the property is put in the ownership of 
the property. I' [citation omitted] (emphasis added) 608 So.2d 524. 

In contrast, the Second District in Sebrina Airport Authority, 623 S0.2d 541 

determined that a publicly-owned automobile raceway leased to a for-profit corporation 

for public recreational purposes was not exempt from ad valorem tax under 

5 196.199(2)(a), Fla. Stat. because the operation of the raceway for-profit was not a 

governmental function, announcing the following rule of law: 

The lessee in the present case does not serve a governmental purpose. The 
Corporation's operation of the speedway is purely proprietary and for 
profit. The Corporation exists in order to make profits for its stockholders 
and uses the leasehold to further that purpose. This use is determinative: 
It is the utilization of leased property from a governmental source that 
determines whether it is taxable under the Constitution. (emphasis added) 
623 So.2d 542 quoting from Volesia County v. Davtona Beach Raceway 
and Recreational Facilities Districts, 341 So.2d 498 (Fla. 1976). 

The Second District narrowly focuses on the institutional character of the lessee 

using the property, whereas the First District looks to the public recreational purpose 

served by the lessee. 

The Florida Supreme Court should exercise discretion and accept jurisdiction to 

prevent disparate treatment of similarly situated taxpayers, Otherwise, the determination 

of whether a governmentally owned stadium leased to a Major League team for spring 

4 



training games is subject to ad valorem tax will be based upon the geographical location 

of the stadium, rather than the statutory criteria in 5 196.199, Fla. Stat. 0 

CONCLUSION 

The Florida Supreme Court has accepted jurisdiction in Sebring Airport Authority 

v. McTntyre, 623 So.2d 541 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1993), which case was cited as controlling 

authority by the Second District in its per curiam opinion affirming the Final Summary 

Judgment against the CITY. Therefore, the per curiarn opinion continues to constitute 

express conflict and allows the Supreme Court to exercise its jurisdiction. In order to 

avoid inconsistent tax treatment of the numerous public recreational facilities owned by 

governmental entities throughout the state and leased to for-profit lessees, the Florida 

Supreme Court should elect to hear this case.