IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

MAD 7 1994

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By Chief Deputy Clerk

CITY OF SARASOTA, a municipal corporation,

Appellant/Petitioner,

v.

J. W. MIKOS, Property Appraiser for Sarasota, County, Florida,

Appellee/Respondent.

Supreme Court Case No. 83,177

Second District Case No. 92-04486

BRIEF OF APPELLEE/RESPONDENT, J. W. MIKOS, ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT K. ROBINSON
Florida Bar No. 0815081
JOHN C. DENT, JR.
Florida Bar No. 0099242
DENT, COOK & WEBER
1844 Main Street
Post Office Box 3269
Sarasota, Florida 34230
(813) 952-1070
Attorneys for
Appellee/Respondent

#

# PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The Appellant/Petitioner, City of Sarasota, will be referred to as "City". The Appellee/Respondent, JOHN W. MIKOS, Property Appraiser for Sarasota County, Florida, will be referred to as "Mikos". References to the Appendix shall be made with the use of the letter "A" followed by the appropriate page.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The per curiam affirmed in the District Court offered a mere counsel notification citation of Sebring Airport Authority v. McIntyre, 623 So.2d 541 (Fla. 2d DCA 1993). The District Court did not follow the recommended procedure outlined in Jollie v. State of Florida, 405 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981) when given two separate opportunities to do so. This Court should decline jurisdiction on the basis of the Dodi Publishing Company v. Editorial America, S.A., 385 So.2d 1369 (Fla. 1980) and Robles Del Mark Inc. v. Town of Indian River Shores, 385 So.2d 1371 (Fla. 1980) decisions.

# STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND THE FACTS

On November 24, 1993, the District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, per curiam affirmed with citation the decision of the lower court in favor of Mikos (A-1). The City filed a motion for rehearing and for stay on the basis of Sebring Airport Authority et al. v. McIntyre, 623 So. 2nd 541 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1993) which is on appeal to the Florida Supreme Court (A-3). The City's reasoning was that, since the Second District Court of Appeal had cited Sebring Airport Authority as the basis for the per curiam affirmed and, if the Florida Supreme Court reversed or modified Sebring Airport Authority, it might in some way impact the Second District decision in the case at bar. The Second District Court of Appeal denied the City's motion on January 10, 1994 (A-2). The City filed a timely notice to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of the Florida Supreme Court, on January 31, 1994.

The citation PCA from the Second District Court of Appeal does not set forth any facts from the underlying case. Mikos would disagree and take exception to the statement of facts in the case set forth in the City's brief. Mikos would also take exception with the Appendix attached to and filed with Petitioner's Brief.

See <u>Jenkins vs. State</u>, 385 So.2nd, 1356 (Fla. 1980); <u>School Board of Pinellas County vs. District Court of Appeal</u>, 467 So.2nd, 985 (Fla. 1985).

The Appendix contains documents outside those allowed by Rule 9.120(d) Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure.<sup>2</sup>

Rule 9.120(d), Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure provides that a Petitioner's brief on jurisdiction is to be accompanied by an Appendix containing a conformed copy of the decision of the District Court of Appeal. Unlike other provisions in the Appellate Rules authorizing an Appendix in compliance with Rule 9.220, Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, this Rule limits the appendix to the decisions of the District Court. See also Jenkins v. State and School Board of Pinellas County v. District of Appeal.

#### ARGUMENT

A MERE CITATION PER CURIAM AFFIRMED RENDERED IN THE TRADITIONAL FORM BY A DISTRICT COURT REMAINS NON-REVIEWABLE BY THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT.

The City is attempting to have this Court accept jurisdiction under its power of discretionary jurisdiction, pursuant to Article 5, Section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution, to review the citation PCA of the District Court. The City is basing its jurisdictional arguments on purported conflict jurisdiction between <u>Sebring Airport Authority</u> and <u>Page v. Fernandina Harbor Joint Venture</u>, 608 So.2nd 520 (Fla. 1st DCA 1992).

Traditionally, citations PCA do not establish conflict jurisdiction in the Florida Supreme Court. <u>Dodi Publishing Company</u> v. Editorial America, S.A., 385 So.2nd 1369 (Fla. 1980); <u>Robles Del Mar Inc. v. Town of Indian River Shores</u>, 385 So.2nd 1371 (Fla. 1980). In Dodi, the Florida Supreme Court stated:

The issue to be decided from a petition for conflict review is whether there is express and direct conflict in the decision of the District Court before us for review, not whether there is conflict in the prior written opinion which is now cited for authority.

It is undisputed that the decision of the Second District Court of Appeal for which the City seeks review was a citation PCA (A-1).

The City bases its argument for conflict jurisdiction primarily upon the case of <u>Jollie v. State of Florida</u>, 405 So.2nd 418 (Fla. 1981). A review of the principles set forth in <u>Jollie</u>,

the citation PCA in the case at bar, the City's motion for rehearing and for stay, and the order on motion for rehearing and for stay, reveals that conflict jurisdiction is inappropriate in this case.

In <u>Jollie</u>, the Florida Supreme Court was faced with a difficult decision. The Court had overturned two conflicting District Court decisions along with three per curiam affirmed decisions citing one of the above conflicting cases on the issue of mandatory jury instructions in a criminal case. The petition for review in <u>Jollie</u> on the same issue and citing the same case was filed after the effective date of the 1980 constitutional amendment limiting Supreme Court jurisdiction. Thus, the incorrect District Court's PCA was at risk of standing due to the change in the constitution.

The Supreme Court carved out an exception to the new limits on jurisdiction based upon the record proper doctrine. The Court concluded:

a district court of appeal per curiam opinion with cites as controlling authority a decision that is either pending review in or has been reversed by this Court continues to constitute prima facie express conflict and allows this Court to exercise its jurisdiction.

The Court, however, recommended a two-step procedure for isolating for review in the Florida Supreme Court those decisions which reference to a lead opinion as distinguished from those per curiam opinions which merely cite counsel-advising cases such as in <a href="Dodi">Dodi</a>.

First, the Court suggested that:

District Courts add an additional sentence in each citation PCA which references a controlling contemporaneous or companion case, stating that the mandate will be withheld pending final disposition of the petition for review, if any, filed in the controlling decision. In essence, this will "pair" the citation PCA with the referenced decision in the District Court until it is final without review, or if review is sought, until that review is denied or otherwise acted upon by this Court.

The Supreme Court also suggested that the district courts devise a method to distinguish a contemporaneous or companion case from cases which offer a mere counsel notification citation. The Court went on to reaffirm the traditional rule on citation PCAs established in <u>Dodi</u> and <u>Robles Del Mar</u>.

The Second District citation PCA in the case at bar contains no additional sentence which would pair the case at bar to the case in <u>Sebring Airport Authority</u>. Furthermore, the District Court did not certify that an identical point was at issue in <u>Sebring Airport Authority</u>. An example of a District Court implementing the Supreme Court's suggested procedure can be found in <u>Stewart v. State</u>, 452 So.2d 578 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984).

In the City's motion for rehearing and for stay in this case, the City made the same arguments to the District Court based on the <u>Jollie</u> decision (A-3). Given the opportunity to pair this case with the <u>Sebring Airport Authority</u> decision pending review before the Florida Supreme Court, the Second District Court declined and denied the City's motion (A-2). Therefore, it is evident the citation PCA in the case at bar cited the <u>Sebring Airport Authority</u> decision as a mere counsel advising case such as

in <u>Dodi</u>. The Florida Supreme Court should deny jurisdiction on that basis.

# CONCLUSION

The City's notice to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court should be denied.